
Page 1



 13 

Planning Board Members in Attendance: 

Staff Members in Attendance: 

Members of the Public in Attendance: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman R. Starodoj called the meeting to order at 7:00pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

Approval of Minutes from January 5, 2022 & December 15, 2022 

Motion by N. Talbot to approve the January 5, 2022, meeting minutes as submitted with one correction to the 
name of Brian Winslow. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: None 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 

Rick Starodoj Chair 
Nancy Talbot Vice Chair 
Ken Crosby 
Ed Murphy 
Chris DiMarzio 
Elizabeth 
Hancock 

Alternate 

Rob Watchilla PCD Department Director 
Kristen Jacobsen PCD Dept. Admin. Assistant 
Anna Marques Building Commissioner, Zoning 

Enforcement Officer 

Donald Frydryk, 
Sherman & Frydryk 

Sadie Milner 

Karen Hubaz, 
Bond Construction 
Kathleen Knight 
Jennifer Knight 

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082 
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120

Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes from 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 
Selectboard Meeting Room 

126 Main Street, Ware MA 01082 

Page 2



K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

Motion by N. Talbot to approve the December 15, 2022, meeting minutes with corrections to pg. 11. And areas 
where E. Murphy was marked as absent. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: None 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Abstain 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

Four in favor. One 
Abstention Approved 

4/0/1. 

Public Hearing 

7:05pm: SP-2022-10 (Bond Construction Corporation) [CONTINUED] 
Applicant is requesting a Special Permit to remove earth materials at 219 Babcock Tavern Road. 
Deeded in the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds, Book 12833, Page 207, and Book 07177, Page 
314. Assessor’s Parcel 4-0-14 & 4-14-2. Zoned: Rural Residential (RR).

R. Starodoj reopened the Public Hearing

E. Hancock recused herself.

D. Frydryk presented the revised plans for the earth removal project at 219 Babcock Tavern Road.
These revisions can be found on pages 7 & 8 of the meeting packet.

• Updated well measurements on the four monitoring wells.
• Limit of work changed on the southerly side to maintain a 50-foot offset from the property line.
• Estimated volume of removal as been reduced to 189,000 cubic yards.
• The line type for the limit of work has been changed and labeled.
• Erosion control has been proposed on the easterly side and shown on plans.
• Four cross sections have been included.
• The well and septic for 240 Babcock Tavern Rd has been included.
• The home of the southerly abutter has been added based on MassGIS data (no record of the well and

septic for that property could be found)
• Additional topography has been added (outside the limit of work)
• The applicant proposes to fuel on site equipment at the northerly end of the proposed limit of work.
• For sites that do not have stormwater leaving the site to waters of the USA, no EPA filings are necessary. If

needed the applicant will prepare and submit the required filing.

Page 3



K. Crosby inquired about the grading on the road. The board and D. Frydryk discussed the grading and
the refueling of machinery. The only refueling that would be done on site would be  the machinery and
not the trucks used to haul.

K. Crosby asked about the wells. D. Frydryk answered that wells 1,2,& 3 were dry. K. Crosby and K.
Hubaz discussed the groundwater found in well 4.

R. Watchilla inquired as to the type of permanent markers that would be used to delineate the project
boundary. K. Hubaz answered that once the project gets within 100’ of the boundary permanent pins
would be installed and would be flagged until that time.

R. Starodoj asked if any board members had further questions and when none arose opened up questions to the
audience.

E. Hancock spoke addressing the SWPPP*, the cease-and-desist order which was issued 9/19/19, rescinded on
9/23/19. R. Starodoj spoke saying that as long as the trees weren’t being stumped it was not disturbing the land
and would look at the cutting of trees differently from stumping it out. E. Hancock and the board discussed when a
SWPPP would be called for.  The board D. Frydryk discussed that they do not anticipate storm water leaving the
site, if they do need to file an SWPPP they will do so. K. Hubaz spoke stating she would file any paperwork she
needed to regarding any environmental issues. K. Hubaz stated she had met with a member of the Conservation
Commission at the site and the individual did not say there was any additional paperwork they needed to file. R.
Watchilla clarified that K. Hubaz was referring to Conservation Agent J. Prenosil. E. Hancock and D. Frydryk
discussed the request made by J. Prenosil to add the wetlands area onto the plans.

E. Hancock discussed the Massachusetts Erosion Control Guidelines for Urban Planners*. R. Starodoj discussed his
thoughts on the tree removal of the area. K. Hubaz discussed the trees saying they were pine trees on sandy soil
and even though she didn’t have anything to do with the initial tree removal it was a safety issue as the trees did
not have large root balls. She went on to say they are not stripping the entire area only stripping and stumping the
areas they are going to mine. R. Starodoj spoke about the current brush growth and how it helps stabilize the soil.
C. DiMarzio stated if it weren’t an earth removal permit they would have to remove the trees as they so choose and
would have the right to harvest the natural resource on their property. K. Knight spoke of having a tree fall one her
barn and another hit the side of the garage. Comments from her insurance agent prompted her to remove the
trees. R. Starodoj discussed her reasons for removing the trees. E. Hancock spoke of a site walk performed on the
property in October 2019*.

E. Hancock spoke about the trees being used as a marker between the proposed phase II and phase III project
areas*.  R. Starodoj added that although the trees were trimmed down the roots and stumps are still there and are
an indicator of where the line is. E. Hancock and R. Starodoj discussed the trimming down of the trees, R. Starodoj
said there was no way of preventing them from taking trees down.

E. Hancock spoke about an email from 5/5/2020* and a Planning Board Meeting 8/6/2020* R. Starodoj stated he
believed that was rescinded. A. Marques spoke stating a tree was being used as a visual reference point and they
have pictures of in their records. As far as the access road it was not for the removal but to get to the higher
elevation. E. Hancock stated she was not made aware of this. A. Marques said she did provide the information to
whomever requested it.

E. Hancock spoke regarding Bond Construction being noted as the applicant on the Special Permit Application and
cited and email from 10/14/2020*

Page 4



E. Hancock discussed an email from town consul which said the Planning Board vote was invalid and the only
person who can decide that are the owners of the property.  The board and E. Hancock discussed the nature of the
applicant being Bond Construction on behalf of the property owner.  R. Watchilla stated K. Knight did submit a new
landowner authorization form including both 219 and 240 Babcock Tavern Road and authorizing Bond as an
applicant. R. Starodoj proposed of having the Kulas Life Estate as the Applicant (and Bond Construction). E.
Hancock said that should satisfy the matter. The board and E. Hancock discussed the permit staying with the land
and its control by the owner.

E. Hancock discussed the need to close out Phase II. The board and K. Hubaz spoke about how that portion is has
piles of loam there and the trucks are using it to turn around and the areas of banking have had loam spread.

K. Hubaz and K. Crosby discussed the volume being carried by the trucks and the measurements of weight.

E. Hancock spoke about a comment made by J. Kusnierz during a site walk of the property after she had voiced her
concerns. J. Kusnirez suggested she sell her home. E. Hancock discussed the drop in property value of homes
abutting gravel removal pits.*

J. Knight and R. Starodoj discussed the purpose of the gravel removal with J. Knight saying its ultimate purpose
was to make the farmland more profitable. R. Starodoj questioned if that was the intent.

E. Hancock spoke of comments made by K. Hubaz during the 12/1/22 Planning Board Meeting*. E. Hancock
questioned the duration of the project and sought clarification on the timeline. C. DiMarzio spoke about the earth
removal permit and if they can be compliant with the conditions. He went on to discuss how the ultimate use of a
property has not been asked of other earth removal permit holders  and is not a concern.  R. Starodoj spoke of the
concerns of others regarding the use of the land, he further discussed the financial toll running a farm takes and
what it costs to maintain a property of that nature. R. Starodoj discussed that the money coming from the gravel
operation is a way to maintain property in an open space and encourages it not to be developed. R. Starodoj asked
what other type of use E. Hancock would like to see on that property. E. Hancock questioned what Mrs. Knight
wanted from the project. R. Starodoj responded saying Bond is speaking for Mrs. Knight and they are asking for
gravel removal to have a field at the specified level.  E. Hancock discussed the timeline of the project and asked if
Mrs. Knight wanted to wait 15+ years to have the project completed. R. Starodoj said it would be based on the
market for the gravel E. Hancock discussed the history of the earth removal on her father’s property and her
concerns about the future of the project. R. Starodoj spoke saying he could not speak to what could happen in the
future, the regulations and tools in place leaves it to future board members and control officers to control that.  C.
DiMarzio spoke about the bonding and protections in place to protect against the issues she has mentioned.

C. DiMarzio sought clarification on E. Hancock’s wishes.  He discussed the project and that he appreciates her
concerns and that the board was acting upon a permit for a commercial gravel pit operation and that is their
primary focus. R. Starodoj stated there is not a gravel permit currently issued that has a final timeline.  C. DiMarzio
said as they move forward he would be interested to hear what Hancock’s concerns are regarding buffering, hours
of operation or things of that nature. E. Hancock stated her primary desire is to have a timeline for the project, to
have no work done on the weekends. K. Hubaz added that they haven’t removed gravel on the weekends and
discussed that they do refuel and do maintenance on the equipment during that time if necessary and possibly
grading.

E. Hancock stated it was mostly the beeping noise and inquired if it could be turned off. K. Hubaz answered that
they are mandated to have the back up alarms. R. Starodoj stated they can put it as a condition that they not
operate machines with them during certain hours. K. Crosby asked if the material was being processed onside. K.
Hubaz answered that they only screen the material there.

Page 5



N. Tabot asked for any remaining comments from E. Hancock. E. Hancock inquired about limiting the hours of
operation. The board and K.Hubaz discussed the potential hours, K.Hubaz said the final truck leaves by 3pm and 
the first arrives by 7am. E. Hancock discussed the noise produced by the trucks and would prefer to have them 
from 8am-4pm. The board discussed thre hours of 7am-4pm M-F. E. Hancock asked for some screening at the 
buffer zone and asked for trees to be planted. K.Knight said some of the remaining trees are 12’ tall.  The board 
discussed the conditions of the buffer zone. 

The board and K. Hubaz discussed the equipment there and where the material is processed and the timeframe of 
selling it. 

E. Hancock read a statement from her notes (page 5 2nd paragraph) *

C. DiMarzio discussed the gravel operation near Beaver Lake.

R. Starodoj & K. Crosby asked if there were new unheard points to be discussed.

E. Hancock read a statement about free speech*

R. Starodoj stated what happened before is not relevant to this permit. E. Hancock disagreed and continued
reading her statement. E. Hancock sought to read the history of the project. R. Starodoj declined stating it did not
concern this permit and is not new information. R. Starodoj stated it is not Phase III it is a gravel removal permit. C.
DiMarzio spoke saying if there was proof of negligence via police records that could be presented.  R. Watchilla
clarified that regulations applied to Phase II do not apply now.

E.Hancock spoke about the invalidity of the vote the board took in 2012. E. Hancock stated the board was lied to.
K. Knight stated the issues were under her sisters ownership and she has since passed away. E. Hancock discussed
issued the Planning Board in the past. C. DiMarzio discussed how this was not the appropriate arena for that
conversation.

E.Hancock asked for an endpoint. R. Starodoj stated that it is as the market allows. The board can discuss that and
make it a condition.

J.Knight asked as part of the Special Permit if they needed to do a checking yearly. R. Starodoj confirmed they
would.

R. Starodoj and K. Crosby discussed the possibility of  defining an endpoint and that it seemed unreasonable.

E. Hancock stated it would need to come out of 61A. R. Starodoj stated that was outside of their purview.

 Motion made by E. Murphy to close the Public hearing of SP-2022-10 (Bond Construction Corporation).  
Seconded C. DiMarzio. Discussion: C. DiMarzio spoke with K.Hubaz asking if they would agree not to process 
material at the site. K.Hubaz confirmed that they would.   E. Hancock requested that latitude and longitude be 
added. 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 

Page 6



E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

*Please see appendix for further information

Motion made by N.Talbot to table discussion of Subdivision Regulations until the next meeting.  Seconded E. 
Murphy. Discussion: None 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

Town Planner Update 

The hospital meeting is meeting to Wednesday 1/25/23  

The sign is not powered and operational. A consultant will return in the spring to touch up a few things. 

Town awarded a FEMA hazard mitigation grant. 

Sign bases have arrived for the pedestrian blinker signs, awaiting the signs 

R. Starodoj inquired about progress on battery storage. R. Watchilla said they are continuing to work with PVPC.

R. Starodoj and the board discussed hotel zoning.

Motion made by N.Talbot to ADJOURN at 8:50pm. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: none 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

Page 7



Minutes Approved on: ________________ 

Starodoj  ____________________________ 

Murphy   ____________________________ 

Talbot   ____________________________ 

Crosby   ____________________________ 

DiMarzio ____________________________ 

NEXT PLANNING BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Thursday, February 2nd, at 7:00pm. 

Minutes from Thursday, January 19th, 2023. 

Respectfully submitted by,  

Kristen Jacobsen 
Administrative Assistant 
Planning & Community Development 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



• Such a covenant shall be inscribed on the Definitive
Plan or in a separate document referred to on the
Plan, and delivered to the Planning Board.  The
Planning Board shall turn over the covenant to the
Town Counsel who shall review its contents prior to
approval.

3. All requests for a partial release of the performance guarantee must
be accompanied by:

i. A revised Construction Cost Estimate (see Section 2.4.8.1.i)
for all of the work remaining to be completed in accordance
with the approved plans.

ii. A certification from the project’s engineer that all work and
systems have been completed in accordance with the
approved plans and are functioning as designed and
intended.

iii. Proof that all fees to cover inspections for the release of the
performance guarantee have been paid in full by the
applicant.

iv. “As-Built” plans for that portion of the roadway for which a
partial release is being requested.

b) Procedures for full/final release.

The developer may, upon completion and installation of required
improvements in a subdivision, the completion of record plans and street
acceptance plans, as specified in these rules and regulations, and the
completion of a one-year labor and materials warranty period make formal
application, in writing either by hand delivery or certified mail, to the
Planning Board for full release of any outstanding performance guarantee.

1. Before the Planning Board releases the full interest of the Town in
said performance guarantee, the Planning Board shall:

i. Receive a certification from the project’s engineer that all
work and systems have been completed in accordance with
the approved plans and are functioning as designed and
intended.

Page 20



The sanitary sewer and public water systems must be pressure 
tested and videotaped and comply with the municipality’s 
standards.  Documentation of such testing and videotaping 
must be submitted. 

In no instance shall bonding or covenants be released for the 
final road course and sidewalks until said work has withstood 
one full winter season.  Partial or final release for this work 
may be requested of the Planning Board no sooner than April 
1st of the calendar year subsequent to completion of way and 
walks. 

ii. That the streets and drainage system have functioned as
designed and intended and been in use for through one full
winter.

iii. Obtain in writing from the Director of Public Works, or from a
registered professional engineer chosen by the Planning
Board (and paid for by the applicant), a certificate of
statement that all work and systems required by these rules
and regulations has been constructed in conformance with the
approved construction plans. In the case where roadways will
remain under private ownership, the above-mentioned
certificate or statement shall be supplied by the project's
registered professional engineer.

iv. Receive from the applicant written evidence from the electric,
telephone, gas and cable TV companies and all other public
and private utilities stating that their respective underground
systems have been installed and are functioning to their
satisfaction.

v. Receive from the applicant written evidence from a Registered
Land Surveyor that all permanent bounds and monuments on
all street lines and on the lot or lots within the subdivision are
in place and are accurately located in accordance with the
approved Definitive Plan.

vi. Find that all fees to cover inspections for the release of the
performance guarantee have been paid in full by the
applicant.

vii. Obtain from the applicant a set of record “as-built”
construction plans. Approval of said plans by the Planning

Page 21



Board shall take place after review of the former by the 
Director of Public Works. 

viii. Receive from the applicant street acceptance plan or plans
and necessary documents. Said plans and documents, after
approval by the Planning Board and the Director of Public
Works, shall be presented by the Planning Board to the Town
Meeting for a formal street acceptance in accordance with the
Town Street Acceptance Policy.

ix. Copies of all of the recorded lot deeds showing that the
applicant has retained their rights to the subdivision road(s)
right-of-way, or Certification from developer’s lawyer that all
deeds to lots contained phrasing which retained his rights to
the right-of-way(s).

x. All “as-built” Definitive Subdivision Plan information
pertaining to the creation of the lots (including annotation of
frontage, dimensions, acreage, etc.) shall also be submitted in
a digital format acceptable to the Town using drawing
interchange files (AutoCAD compatible files). Horizontal and
vertical control shall have at least two (2) points tied (in feet)
into the most recent Massachusetts State Plane Coordinate
System using municipal GIS monuments stationed throughout
the Town.  Horizontal control shall have a closure of 1:12,000
or better. Vertical control must be of second order D Class 2
accuracy or better and be tied to USGS datum.  All records of
control shall be delivered to and reviewed by the Town.

xi. All “as-built” Definitive Subdivision Plan, Record and Street
Acceptance Plan information shall also be submitted in pdf
and AutoCAD compatible format or in another digital format
acceptable to the Town.

2. If the Planning Board determines that all improvements as shown on
the endorsed definitive plan and all required plans and legal
documents have been completed satisfactorily, it shall release all the
interest of the Town in such performance guarantee and return the
bond to the person who furnished the same, or release the covenant,
by appropriate instrument, duly acknowledged, which may be
recorded.

3. If the Planning Board determines after inspection that said
construction or installation has not been completed, or wherein said

Page 22



construction or installation fails to comply with these rules and 
regulations, the Planning Board shall send by registered mail to the 
applicant and to the Town Clerk the details wherein said 
construction or installation fails to comply with its rules. 

4. The applicant shall have 30 days after receipt of such notice to
correct all problems mentioned in the above. Failure of the applicant
to finish all the necessary work within said 30 days shall cause the
Planning Board to draw upon the bond or deposit of money as
mentioned below.

5. Any such bond may be enforced and any such deposit may be
applied by the Planning Board for the benefit of the Town of Ware,
as provided in MGL c. 41, § 81, upon failure of the performance for
which any bond or deposit was given to the extent of the reasonable
cost to the Town of completing such construction and installation.

2.4.11 Recording of plan 

The developer shall, within 10 days after the definitive plan has been endorsed, 
record said plan, required forms and, whenever applicable, the Planning 
Board's order of conditions, public easements (plans and documents), 
restrictive covenants, master deeds, etc., at the Hampshire County Registry of 
Deeds, and in the case of registered land with the Recorder of the Land Court.  
Within seven (7) days of said recording the applicant shall provide the Board 
with a copy of the Registry’s receipt of said recording including the book, page 
number, and date of recording.  The cost of said recording shall be borne by 
the developer. 

2.4.12 Rescinding Approval of the Plan 

Failure of the applicant to record the Definitive Plan at the Hampshire Country 
Registry of Deeds within six (6) months of its endorsement or to comply with 
the construction schedule of the performance agreement shall constitute 
sufficient cause for the Board to rescind such approval, in accordance with the 
requirements of section 81-W of Chapter 41 of the General Laws as amended. 

2.4.13 Preconstruction Conference 

Prior to commencement of construction, the developer and the contractor 
must meet with the Director of Public Works and other relevant Town officials 

Commented [WR8]: Going back to the earlier question, is 
there better language to use here than "rescinding approval 
of the plan"? 

Page 23



(preferably at a single meeting) to review the subdivision permit and 
conditions. The applicant must provide evidence that all required documents 
have been recorded and all required fees paid. Subsequent to said recording 
and prior to any building permit being issued, the project applicant shall file 
within seven calendar days one print of the definitive plan with the Building 
Inspector. Further, in accordance with the statute, where approval with 
covenant is noted thereon, the Inspector shall issue no permit for the 
construction of a building on any lot within the subdivision, except upon 
receipt from the Planning Board of a copy of the certificate of performance 
releasing the lot in question. 

2.4.14 Road Acceptance 

When a road or way in a subdivision has been completed in a manner fulfilling 
the requirements of the Planning Board, the Applicant may request the 
Planning Board or their designee to inspect the road or way in order to give a 
recommendation to Town Meeting, on whether the road or way should be 
accepted.  

Process for road acceptance can be found in the Town of Ware Road 
Acceptance Policy. 

The Planning Board shall require the following information before making a 
recommendation to the Town Meeting: 

a) Two (2) copies of a plan of the road or way "as built," at a scale of one inch
equals forty (1”= 40’) feet to the inch at size 24" x 36". Said plan to show a
center line profile (4 feet per inch on the vertical scale and 40 feet per inch
on a horizontal scale) taken at fifty (50) foot intervals along the road or way
as it has been completed. All utilities, public and private, above and below
grade shall be shown on the plan as they exist. Said plan shall also be
submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the Planning Board.

b) Two (2) copies of the description by metes and bounds of each road and
easement considered for acceptance by the Town. After acceptance by the
Town Meeting of a road or way in an approved subdivision, the "as built"
plan referred to above, the vote of the Town Meeting and the description of
the road or way shall be recorded with the Hampshire County Registry of
Deeds by the Town Clerk.

Commented [WR9]: See earlier question regarding 
generic transfer of title deed for private roadways. 

Page 24



c) A release of liens under oath from all contractors and subcontractors
approved for work on the road or way, attesting to the fact that all
payments due them for labor and materials have been received, and that
payments for all materials have been rendered.

d) A plan for maintenance of the subdivision right-of-ways, easements, roads,
and sidewalks for the time after acceptance by the Town and continuing for
20 years. The maintenance plan should include provision for the
maintenance of road pavement, sidewalks, soil settling problems, street
sweeping, snowplowing, maintaining vegetative stabilization of all rights-of
way and easements, erosion controls, Fall leaf cleanup, catch basin and
drainage system cleaning and maintenance, all stormwater management
systems, and other provisions as determined to be necessary by the Board.

e) A Roadway Conveyance Plan showing the overall boundary of the proposed
roadway to be conveyed to the Town. This plan must include the bearing
and distance descriptions of the roadway right-of-way.

f) A Roadway Conveyance Instrument prepared by an attorney and in a form
suitable for execution by the Board of Selectmen after acceptance of the
roadway at Town Meeting.  This instrument must include a legal description
of the right-of-way and include reference to any easement documents.

g) An Easement Conveyance Plan showing overall boundary of any proposed
easements to be conveyed to the Town.  This plan must include the bearing
and distance description of the easement tied to the roadway right-of-way.

h) An Easement Conveyance Instrument prepared by an attorney and in a form
suitable for execution by the Board of Selectmen after acceptance of the
easement at Town Meeting.  This instrument must include a legal
description of the easement as well as a description of the Town’s rights
within the easement

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Town Planner Update: February 2nd, 2023 
• The Town of Ware has been awarded the following grants:

o MassDOT Complete Streets Programs
 For sidewalk reconstruction on Church Street from the intersection of

Main Street to Walnut Street.
o Safe Streets For All (SS4A) Grant (USDOT)

 For the creation of a safety action plan to help generate funding through
future grant cycles.

 Most of the applicants in this grant program are regional collectives and
large cities. The Town of Ware applied by itself.

o Hazard Mitigation Plan Grant (FEMA)
 To update the Town’s existing Hazard Mitigation Plan

Page 32


	2-2-23 PB agenda
	1-19-23 Minutes OFFICIAL DRAFT
	1-19-23 minutes
	13
	TOWN OF WARE

	E. Hancock docs

	Cover Letter (2-2-2023)
	Plans Revised 2-2-2023_Page_1
	Plans Revised 2-2-2023_Page_2
	Plans Revised 2-2-2023_Page_3
	Subdivision Docs
	Subdivision Regulations - Rough Draft

	Update 2-2-23



